
Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  N.M. Pringle 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
 R.J. Phillips (Leader)
 G.V. Hyde (Deputy Leader)
 Mrs. L.O. Barnett
 P.J. Edwards
 Mrs. J.P. French
 J.C. Mayson
 D.W. Rule MBE
 R.V. Stockton
 D.B. Wilcox
 R.M. Wilson 

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

NMP/CD 

Mr. N.M. Pringle 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

npringle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

4th February, 2004 

 
Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY, 12TH FEBRUARY, 2004 AT 2.15 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 
 

AGENDA (03/22) 
 
 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on this agenda.   
  
3. CORPORATE HEALTH PERFORMANCE   
  
 To receive an update on the Council's corporate performance in relation to our National and 

Local Best Value Performance Indicators from 1st April to 30th November, 2003, and to 
receive outline proposals to improve reporting arrangements during 2004/2005.  (Pages 1 - 4) 

  
4. HEREFORDSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN: REVISED DEPOSIT DRAFT   
  
 To consider recommending the Revised Deposit Draft version of the Herefordshire Unitary 

Development Plan (UDP) to Council for approval for the purposes of public deposit.  (Pages 5 
- 8) 

  
EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC 
 
EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 
In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the next item will not be, or is likely not to be, open to the 
public and press at the time it is considered. 

. 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
That under the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information ad 
defined in Schedule 12(A) of the Act as indicated below.   
 
5. SINGLE STATUS/JOB EVALUATION   
  
 To consider arrangements to complete the introduction of Single Status employment.  (Pages 

9 - 12) 
  
  
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
N.M. PRINGLE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
County Secretary and Solicitor 
County Treasurer 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\0\AI00003003\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc04/02/04 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\0\AI00003003\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc04/02/04 

 

Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print, or on tape.  Please contact 
the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 
The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via bus route 74.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Christine Dyer on 
01432 260222 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at the southern entrance to 
the car park.  A check will be undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to collect coats or other 
personal belongings. 





 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

 Tony Michael, Policy Officer, on (01432) 261823   

Corporate Health 

CORPORATE HEALTH PERFORMANCE 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 

CABINET 12TH FEBRUARY, 2004    
 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To provide an update on the Council’s corporate performance in relation to our National and 
Local Best Value Performance Indicators from 1st April to 30th November, 2003, and to 
outline proposals to improve reporting arrangements during 2004/2005. 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision.    

Recommendation 

THAT  (a)  performance in relation to the Council’s National and Local Corporate 
Best Value Indicators, from 1st April to 30th November 2003, be noted; 
and 

 (b)  the development of proposals to improve performance monitoring 
during 2004/2005 also be noted.   

 

Reasons 

1. The Council has developed revised performance monitoring arrangements as 
outlined in the Comprehensive Performance Self-assessment document submitted to 
the Audit Commission. The revised arrangements ensure that the Chief Executive’s 
Management Team, the Strategic Monitoring Committee, Scrutiny Committees, and 
Cabinet are all involved in the performance monitoring process.  

Considerations 

2. During 2003/2004 corporate performance will be reported to Cabinet at 4, 6, 8, 10 
and 12 monthly intervals in line with the Council’s Performance Management 
Framework.  

3. Corporate performance for the 8 month period 1st April 2003 – 30th November 2003 
has been reported on an exception basis and only those indicators where there is a 
variation on the target of at least + or – 10% are highlighted. 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



 

 

4. The Head of Performance Management is currently reviewing performance reporting 
arrangements across the Council and considering examples of best practice from 
other local authorities, with a view to introducing an improved and a more consistent 
approach to performance monitoring during 2004/2005. 

5. To reflect the move to four main Council meetings, with a fifth Council meeting 
specifically to deal with the budget, during 2004/2005 the meeting timetable for 
Scrutiny Committees will be modified to provide for four programmed meetings 
during the year. Arrangements will be made to ensure that relevant Cabinet members 
and Scrutiny Chairmen continue to receive regular performance monitoring reports. 

 
Above target performance 

6. The percentage of top 5% of earners that are from black and minority ethnic 
communities (National Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 
2%, whereas the actual level from 1st April to 30th November 2003 was 3.2%. 

7. Number of recorded complaints, both formal and informal (Local Indicator): 
The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 285, whilst the number of complaints 
recorded for the first 8 months of this year is already up to 273. The high level of 
recorded complaints reflects improved collection arrangements and a greater focus 
on customer service issues across the authority. 

8. Percentage of formal complaints resulting in change of practice (Local 
Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 6%. During the 8 months 
up to 30 November 2003, 128 formal complaints were received and 10 resulted in a 
change of practice, resulting a percentage figure of 8%.  

9. Staff mileage (Local Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is to 
reduce mileage by 1%. Performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003, 
compared to the same period during 2002, showed a 9% reduction.  

10. Use of public transport by staff (Local Indicator): The target for this indicator 
during 2003/2004 is to increase expenditure on the use of public transport by 5%. 
Performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 showed a 38% increase, 
compared to the same period during 2002. 

Areas for Improvement 

11. The number of Housing benefit claimants visited, per 1,000 caseload (National 
Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 175 per 1000 caseload. 
Performance for the 8 months up to 30 November 2003 was 145 per 1000 caseload. 
This shows an improvement over the performance for the first six months of the year 
(135 per 1000 caseload). Staffing levels were 30% below the full compliment level up 
to 30th November 2003. This issue has now been addressed and performance is 
expected to continue to improve during the remainder of 2003/2004.  

12. Average time for processing new housing benefit claims (National Indicator): 
The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 33 days, whilst performance for the 8 
months up to 30th November 2003 was 54 days. This shows an improvement over 
the performance for the first six months of the year when the average processing 
time was 56 days. A significant amount of downtime in software systems, the 
implementation of tax credits and shortages in staffing resources, have all affected 
performance in this area. These issues have now been addressed and, as a result, it 

2



 

 

is anticipated that performance will continue to improve over the remaining 4 months 
of 2003/2004. 

13. Average time for processing notifications of changes of circumstance for 
housing benefit claims (National Indicator): The target for this indicator during 
2003/2004 is 9 days, whilst performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 
was 12 days. The late notification by the Inland Revenue of working tax and child tax 
credits entitlements during the early part of the year resulted in a significant amount 
of additional changes in circumstances to be dealt with by the Benefits Team, 
compared with the same period last year. The additional changes in circumstances 
have now been cleared and an improvement in this area is expected during the next 
monitoring period.  

14. Percentage of housing benefit renewal claims processed on time (National 
Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 83%, whilst performance 
for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 was 27%. During 2003/2004 staffing 
resources have been put into dealing with new claims and changes in circumstances 
at the expense of renewal applications to give priority to those people waiting for 
benefit. From October 2003, there is no longer a requirement to issue renewal claims 
to pensioners and this will have a positive impact on performance. 

15. Domestic burglaries per 1000 population  (National Indicator): The target for this 
indicator during 2003/2004 is 8 per 1000 population, whilst performance for the 8 
months up to 30th November 2003, suggests that the annual figure will be 
approximately 12 per 1000. The West Mercia Police Force has established a burglary 
action plan in order to reduce the number of burglaries. A team of officers has been 
created that are dedicated to burglary and vehicle crime in support of this strategy. 
The Division is also working with neighbouring Forces in order to reduce the number 
of cross-border offenders.     

16. The number of types of interactions that are enabled for electronic delivery as 
a percentage of the types of interactions that are legally permissible for 
electronic delivery (National Indicator): The target for this indicator is 100% by 
31st March 2004. Performance up to 30th November 2003 was 44%, and this 
compares with a figure of 42% up to 30th September 2003. There has been little 
improvement in relation to this indicator, because there has been limited 
development of the current web site, with the focus of effort being on developing the 
e-Gateway infrastructure, which will be the main platform for the delivery of electronic 
services in the future.  

17. The percentage of standard searches carried out in 10 working days (National 
Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 100%, whilst 
performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 was 86%. However, this 
compares with an outturn performance of 58% for 2002/2003, demonstrating a 
significant improvement in performance for the current year. 

18. The percentage of Staff Review and Development interviews completed in the 
previous 12 months (Local Indicator): The target for this indicator is 100%, whilst 
performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 was 68%. As part of the 
Council’s new Performance Management Framework, it is planned to undertake the 
majority of Staff Review and Development interviews during March, April and May of 
each year as part of the annual service planning cycle. It is anticipated that these 
new arrangements will result in improved performance in relation to this indicator. 

19. The percentage of agreed training plans arising from Staff Review and 

3



 

 

Development interviews (Local Indicator): The target for this indicator during 
2003/2004 is 90%, whilst performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 
was 68%. It is anticipated that the increased emphasis on the Staff Review and 
Development process, resulting from the implementation of the Council’s revised 
Performance Management Framework, will result in improved performance in relation 
to this indicator. 

20. Percentage of formal complaints resolved at Complaints Officer level (Local 
Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 70%. During the 8 
months up to 30th November 2003, 128 formal complaints were received and 78 
were dealt with at complaints officer level, resulting in percentage figure of 61%. This 
compares with an outturn figure of 52% for 2002-2003, suggesting that performance 
is improving in relation to this indicator.   

21. Percentage of employees receiving a corporate induction within 3 months of 
commencing employment (Local Indicator): The target for this indicator during 
2003/2004 is 100%. Performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 was 
78%. This compares with an outturn performance for the 12 month period 1st April 
2002 to 31st March 2003 of 45%, which demonstrates significant improvement in 
relation to this indicator. 

22. First Stop INFO customer enquiries resolved within agreed timescales (Local 
Indicator): The target for this indicator during 2003/2004 is 80%, however 
performance for the 8 months up to 30th November 2003 was 67%. Service level 
agreements and the procedures for dealing with first stop customer enquiries are 
currently being reviewed in order to improve response rates. 

.                                                                                                                 

Risk Management 

Failure to review performance and improvement activity would undermine the 
implementation of the Council’s Performance Management Framework.  

Background Papers 
� Herefordshire Council’s Performance Management Framework 

� Best Value Performance Plan 2003/200 

4



 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from Dr. David Nicholson, Chief Forward 

Planning Officer on (01432) 261952 

UDPFeb040.doc  

HEREFORDSHIRE UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
REVISED DEPOSIT DRAFT     

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY: ENVIRONMENT 

CABINET  12TH FEBRUARY, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To consider recommending the Revised Deposit Draft version of the Herefordshire Unitary 
Development Plan (UDP) to Council for approval for the purposes of public deposit.    

Key Decision 

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

THAT the Herefordshire Unitary Development Plan: Revised Deposit Draft be 
recommended to Council for approval for the purposes of public deposit.    

Reasons 

To allow Cabinet to consider the changes to the Deposit Draft Plan being proposed by the 
UDP Working Group, prior to consideration by Council.  

Considerations 

The Revised Deposit Draft  

1. Cabinet last considered the UDP in September 2003. Here, initial views on strategic 
planning policy matters, raised by representations to the Deposit Draft in 2002, were 
agreed. Subsequently the UDP Group has been giving detailed scrutiny to each of 
the Plan’s chapters, with a view to considering whether the Plan should be changed 
in the light of the objections received.  

2. An important part of the Group’s work has been a programme of consultation with 
local members, detailed below.  

3. This process has culminated in the production of the Revised Deposit Draft Plan. In 
accordance with the development plan regulations, this takes the form of an edited 
version of the original text, with the proposed changes being indicated either as 
additions or deletions.  

4. A copy of the Revised Deposit Draft is being circulated under separate cover, and is 
also available for inspection in the Members’ Room.  

AGENDA ITEM 4

5



5. The original Plan glossary and appendices have not been re-circulated as these are 
subject to only factual updating and other minor amendments.  Appendices A and B, 
which set out cycle and vehicle parking standards, are proposed in any event for 
deletion, with the standards being set out in supplementary planning guidance.     

6. Consequential changes will be required to the Plan’s proposals maps to reflect the 
changes to policy now proposed. Plans showing the main changes in terms of site 
allocation will be on display at the Cabinet meeting. Other minor map amendments 
have been agreed in consultation with local members.   

The main changes being proposed to the Deposit Draft Plan 

7. A considerable number of changes are being proposed to the original Plan in the 
light of the representations made. These are set out in detail in the Plan itself, but the 
most significant are: 

• Revisions to the treatment of sustainable development (chapters 2 and 3) 

• Revised policies on public art and flood risk (chapter 4) 

• Substitution of a proposed allocation of 300 dwellings at Bullinghope for the original 
housing proposal at Holmer, which is to be deleted. The new Bullinghope allocation 
is intended to assist with delivery of the Rotherwas Access Road (chapter 5).  

• At Bromyard, removing existing and proposed employment allocations at Porthouse 
Farm, with the town’s employment land needs now to be met through the expansion 
of Linton Trading Estate. Porthouse Farm is to be a housing proposal, with the 
original residential allocation at Lower Hardwick Lane being deleted (chapters 5 and 
6) 

• New provision for single rural exception dwellings in amendments to policy H10 
(chapter 5) 

• Deletion of the employment allocation at Holmer, Hereford (chapter 6) 

• Substitution of land at Model Farm, Hildersley, Ross-on-Wye for the employment 
proposal at Overross (chapter 6).    

• Identification of new employment land at Kington, to replace a longstanding 
unimplemented allocation at Hatton Gardens (chapter 6).  

• Identification of a site for a relocated Hereford Livestock Market at Roman Road 
(chapter 7) 

• Amendments to retail planning policies for Hereford city centre pursuant to the Edgar 
Street Grid Masterplan, including changes to the city centre boundary and 
safeguarding of the routes of the Edgar Street/Commercial Road link and Canal 
Road extension (chapters 7 and 8) 

• Inclusion of elements of the Hereford Transport Review (chapter 8)  

• Inclusion of the agreed Waste Best Practicable Environmental Option (BPEO) in 
chapter 12. 

6



Alternative Options 

A number of alternative options have been considered by the UDP Group in reaching the 
changes now proposed, particularly in the case of housing and employment proposals. 
Preparation of the UDP is a statutory requirement.  

Risk Management 

It is important that UDP representations are fully and properly considered by the Council, 
and the process has been designed to ensure that this is the case.  The Council’s proposals 
in the Plan will be open to public objection and thence subject to the Inquiry process and the 
recommendations of the Inspector.      

Consultees 

The report deals with the response to the first public deposit period of the UDP. The member 
UDP Group, which includes Planning and Environment Scrutiny Committee representation, 
has met on six occasions. Local members have been consulted with regard to matters 
relevant to their ward, with ‘surgery’ and other meetings being held in Hereford, Leominster, 
Ledbury, Bromyard and Ross-on-Wye. All members were invited to the UDP Group meeting 
in November dealing with housing and employment, and a further members’ seminar was 
held in February to review the main changes to the Plan now proposed.  

Background Papers 

None identified.  

7



8



AGENDA ITEM 5

9

Document is Restricted



12


